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Dear Mr. Houser;

'RE: ' MINISTRY OF NATURAL RESOURCES - §,35 OF THE FISHERIES ACT

. EBR REGISTRY NO. PB/KE4004.P

We are:writing to provide CELA’s comments on the recent proposal by
the Ministry of Natural Resources (MNR) to withdraw from the
administration and entorcement of section 35 of the Fisheries Act.

In our opinion, the MNR’s proposal is completely unijustified and
-wholly unacceptable. Arguably, the proposal is one of the mbat
signiticant regulatory rollbacks undertaken by the MNR to date, and
it appears motivated solely by partisan politics rather than

" . ecological congiderations. Accordingly, CELA strongly recommends’
that the MNR Iimmediately abandon this "highly objeationable
. proposal., e : e : ‘

our detailed comments are as Follows:

1. The "consultation' on the MNR’s proposal. has been virtually -

non-existent, contrary to the Envirommental Bill of Righte

(EBR).

There can be little doubt that the MNR'’s proposal iz a gignificant
poliecy . decisiocn with broad anvironmental implications if
implemented. We note that the MNR’s FEBR Registry Notice plaimg
that the proposal is merely "adminigtrative in nature and will not

- significantly affect the environment. if the federal Department of

Figheries and Oceans (PDF0) moves to fulfill ite constitutional

responsibilities for fish habitat protection® (emphacis added).

However, given the small number of field staff at DFo’as Burlington
office, it is ahundantly clear that DFO is gimply not qquipped, on
ghort notiam, to adequately administer or enforoe scction 35 of the
i Kz £ acrogg the langth and bBreadth of Ontarid. Thus, the
MNR’& abrupt departure from the long-standing arrangement with DFo
regarding section 35 will inevitably have profound consequences
upon the aquatic environment in Ontario. c Lo
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Moreover, it appears clear that the MNR’s initiative has moved well
. beyond the '"proposal" stage despite the FEBR Reglstry Notice’s
- degcription of this matter as a "policy" still in "proposal®
status. Indeed, the EBR Reglgtry Notice expressly states that.the
MNR has already advised DFO that it will no longer administer or
anforce section 35 ag of Septembax 18, 1997 -- ovne day after the
close of the public comment period prescribed by the EBR Registry
Notice. Aoourdingly, the MNR has already made up 1its minad to
Simplenment the proposal, regardless of any public comments received
during the comment period. .In our view, this approach is’ oontrary
to the spirit and letter of Part II of the EBR., Sfmply announcing
this significant policy shitt as a ;gi;“ggggmpii through the HBR
Registry is both OffenSlVO and unacoeptable." :
Indeed, the FBR Registry Notioe itself is unclear and riddled thh
1nconsistenciea and contradictionsg., For example, the introductory
paragraph indicates ‘that the Notice is being provided simply for
"information purposes only", although section 15 of the EBR clearly
requires notioe—and*comment on this significant policy change.
Similarly, the Notice correctly advises that no public consultation
has occurred in relatioh to this proposal, and further states that
"no comment period has been provided for ‘this proposal because it
iz an Information WNotice only" In the very next sentence,
however, the. Notice goes on to invite written submissions between
August 18th and September 17th, and it provides the address and fax
number of the MNR’s contact person. We can only conclude that the -
MNR either does not understand the publi¢: notice-and-comment
¢ requirements of Part II of the EBR, or that the MNR is not willing
"to comply with such requirements, at least with respeot to this
propesal. , '

It should be noted, however, that CELA's concerns about the MNR’S ’
proposal are not premised solely on the MNR’s procedural failings.
Instead, CELA has a number .of fundamental objections and
substantive concerns about this proposal as‘describéd below.

2. There is no ecological Justlflcatlon for the MNR’s withdrawal
fron the adninistratnon and enforcement of section 35 of the
Figheries Act.

The text of the EBR Rngiqfry Norgﬁp makes it abundant.ly alear that
the MNR’s action is a political rasponse to the peroeived lack of
’proqresg made by the federal government on Bill C-82. If passed,

this Bill would amend’ the Figheries Act to permit a greater
provingial role in fieh habitat protection. Thus, thé MNR’g
proposed withdravwal can only be regarded as a "power play" designed
to force the federal governmont to acquiesce to ontario's demands
and timetable. Nowhere in the EBR. Registry Notice ig it suggested
that oOntario’s withdrawal will  result in batter fish habitat
protection across the province. Indeed, it can only be concluded
that fieh habitat proteotion will suffor graatly under the MNR
proposal, partioularly since MNR staff will now. confine themselves
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to matters under provincial statutas, which are ngt sp901flcally
geared to protect fish habitat:

‘ +««for thome projectas involving work in and around the water,
MNR will ' not be reviewing'and/or'prcviding gsite specific
mitigation advice for fish habitat bayond regquirements of the
‘applicablé provinecial legislation.... Additionally, MNR will
no. longer be providing enforcement of the habitat provisions
of Lhe federal Fisheries Act (scc. 36).*

The lack of ecological Justification for the MNR/e proposad
withdrawal is underscored by an.internal memorandum circulated to
MNR stdff by Deputy Minister.Ron Vrancart. Thies memorandum dated
August 14, 1997 (l.e. days before the "proposal" was postcd on the
EBR Registry) rationalizes the MNR withdrawal on the baais of DFG’e
"lack of progress" and the lack of federal fundas Ffor Ontario’s
section 3% activities. Inuredibly, the memorandun.gees on to chide
the federal gcvernment for terminating funds for lamprey control
programs.. ‘''hig fisca)l decislon, according to the memorandunm,
"compromises one . of the most successful fisheries. management
programs in the world and poses a Lhreat,.. to the Great Lakes
fishery". Apparently, the detrimental -effect of the MNR's
withdrawal from section 3% activitlies upon the Greal Lakes fishery
doe@s not appear to have been conesidered or uukuowleaged by the -
memorandum. ' o -
In the cxrcumstances, we can only concluae that the MNR’S proposal
has been entirely rotivated by purely political) objectives, such
as: , _ ‘ .
- forclng the federal government to commit federal funds Lo
Ontario to ensure that the province carries out section 35
activities;

T foreing the federal government to relinquish some or;all of
its jurisdiction over*fisheries management arid protection; or

- making it easier (or less rlsky) for Ontario -developers to
undertake pronects whlch may adversely affect fisn habitat.

while the public is left to Speculate as to. the MNR‘s actual ‘
motivation (or hidden agenda), the fact remains that this "
initiative has nof, been advanced on the grounds that it wilt
gomehow enhance fish habitat protection in Ontario. 1Indeed, as
deecribed below, tha MNR’s proposal. will leave fish habitat at
congiderable risk in ontario, . particularly in 1light of 'recent.
regulatory rollbacks undertaken by the current provincial
government. : : '

- {'EBR ngistry Notine.
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. 3. * The MNR’s proposal leaves fish habitat at considerable risk,
pacticularly in light of recent regulatory changes in Ontario.

Both the EBR Registry Notice and the MNR ﬁomoranduﬁ indicate that
despite the withdrawal, MNR staff will continue to administer and
enforce. ex1st1ng prov1nc1al lawe insofar aeg they. may apply to
fisheries and work activities in and around water. In CEIA’s view,
thigs bland assurance provides very little comfort and does not
guarantee the continued protection of fish ‘habitat in Ontario. The
principal reason for this councern is simple; none of the Ontaric
laws administered by MNR contain any provisions which are identical
to section 35 of the Fisheries Acl. Statutes such as the Dublic
ot or Lakes and Rivers Improvement Act are not specifically
directed at protecting fish habltat, nor do they contain the atrong -
nvestlgatlon, enforcement and penalty provisions found within the
. ‘Similarly, tO CELA’s knowledge, the MNR has not
developed policy under its statutes to incorporate the important
"no net loss of fish habitat" and "net gain of £ish habitat®
principles entrenched in DFO’s Policy for the Management of Fish
Policy. Therefore, it is misleading for the MNR' tu suggest or .
imply that the same level of fish. habitat protection can be
achleved under ProVLnolal Jlegislation or policy. -

Indeed, the sweeping amendments to MNR statutes contained in 5111
26 and MNR‘s "Red Tape Reduction" legislation make the provipce’sg
role even more tenuous and uncertain in relation to reviewing and
approving -activities that may affect fish habitat. Moreover, in
. light of the massive . staff reductiong and budget cutbacks
pxperlenoed by MNR since 1995, CELA has little confidence that MNR
statutes will be diligently admlnlstered and strangentiy enforced
in order to 1ndirectly protect fish habitat. The simple fact is
that section 35 is arguably the most important and eftective
mechaniem for protectlng fish habitat in .Ontario, The MNR’s
arbitrary decision to abandon section 35 therefore deprives the
remaining MNR staff of the most potent tool for safeguarding f£ish
-habitat and the future of Ontarlo B flsheries. ,

It should be noted that other environmental laws ‘in Ontarlo, such
ae the Ontario Water Resources Act or Environmental Protection Act,

are not administered by the MNR, nor do they directly protect flsh
habitat against phyaical altaration or destruction. Accordingly,
these other provincial statutes cannot be regarded as an adequate
substitute for rection 35 of the Eisherijes Ack. :

Similarly, it ehould be notﬁd that Section 2.3 of the new
Provincial ‘Policy Statement under the “Planning Act pernmits
development and gite alteration within fish habitat (and lands -
adjacent to fish habitat), provided that it is demonstrated (by the

. proponent) that there will be no negative impactﬁ on natural
features or ecological . functions. However, it is questlonable
whether municipalities have the requisite fisheries axpertise to
properly scrutin:ze developers' reports on £ish habitat alteration,
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particulorly sinoc provinecial agenciee have eignificantly reduced
-their traditional revicw-and-comment functione in relation to site-

,  specific planning adpplicotions. Morcoever, in light of the Bill 26
changes to the 21 nning Ack, municipalitics are not even bound by
Section 2.3 -they are merely roguired to "have regard" for
Section 2.3. Por thesé and other reasons, the present Rlanning agt
zeglﬂe cannot be relied upon as a comprehenaive tool for protectlng
figh habitat, paxtloulally tince the vast majority of ontarlo is
Crown land and is ot aubjcct to municlpnl land use pnanning 1n any
event.

A kK

For the foregoing xeusonb,‘anA strongly objects to the MNR’=s

. proposal to withdraw from the adpinistration and enforcement of
section 35 of the Fisberies Act. Accourdingly, we urge the MNR to
apandon this ill-conceived and highly parlisan proposal, and we
tfurther urge the MNR to rasume its importunl role ‘as the lead
agency tor' tish habitat’ protéction in ontario.

Please contact the unaersmgned if  you have -any commentb or
guestions about this matterx.

A \ N

Yours truly,

CANADIAN ENVIRONMENTAL LAW ASSOCIATION

Richard D.. Lindgreﬁ :
Coungel o \

cc. The Hon', Ohris Hodgson, Minister of Natural Resources
" Ms. Eva Ligeti, Environmental Connisgioner
Mr. John Lounds, Federation of Ontario Naturalists
Mr. TJm Gray, Wildlands League
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